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To the south of the development area, concrete areas mark the positions of wartime aircraft
servicing points (looking south).

Topsoil stripping for the access road revealed no archaeological features (looking south-east
towards the school).

Very mixed sand deposits were noted across the site and in the house foundation
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Land off Kingsdown Rd, Birchwood, Lincoln

Archaeological Watching Brief
NGR: SK9281 6913
Site Code: LKRB 04
LCNCC Museum Accn Code: 2005.1
Planning Application: 2003/0871/F

Summary

Groundworks in advance of residential development of part of the former site of RAF Skellingthorpe
revealed no features or finds of archaeological interest. Land drainage pipes were seen, but no trace
of World War Il airfield structures, runway or infrastructure remained. A plan of the airfield indicates
that the development site was beside a runway.

Introduction

Lindsey Archaeological Services (LAS) was commissioned in October 2004 by Stamford Homes Ltd
to conduct an archaeological watching brief during groundworks for a new residential development off
Kingsdown Road, on Lincoln’s Birchwood Estate. The watching brief was required by the City of

Lincoln Council to fulfil a Condition on the planning permission.

Site Location and Description

The c.1.7ha development site is located east of the A46 Lincoln Relief Road, and north of its junction
with Doddington Road (Figs. 1 and 2). Access to the site is from Kingsdown Road, on its north-east
corner. The site was overgrown with saplings and rough vegetation, which were cleared when

development began (PI. 1).

Planning Background
Full planning permission was granted for residential development of the site, comprising 78 houses,
with associated services and access road (Fig. 3). A condition attached to the Consent required an

archaeological watching brief during groundworks.

A project design was prepared by LAS (dated October 14th 2004), which included provision for limited

documentary research, and watching brief visits at intervals during groundworks.

Archaeological Background
The Lincoln Archaeological Research Assessment notes that there is no evidence for prehistoric or
Roman activity in the Birchwood vicinity, but suggests that the area would have provided a managed

resource of timber and other natural materials for local industries and settlement sites (Stocker 2003).

The Ordnance Survey map of 1887-9 shows the development site area as at the edge of fields to the
east of a plantion belt around the Doddington Hall Estate. A zone of scrub occupied land between the

plantation and the fields.




The site was formerly part of RAF Skellingthorpe, constructed in 1941 on a pasture area known as
Black Moor, and opened in November that year (RAF website). The main runway was extended in
1942, and clusters of ancilliary buildings were constructed along Boultham Road (now Skellingthorpe
Road), and Doddington Road (Figs. 4 and 5). Ammunition was stored to the north-west of the airfield
in woodland on Skellingthorpe Moor.

An Air Ministry plan of Skellingthorpe Airfield, dated February 1945, shows that the area 6f the
present development site was open land, between the western runway and a perimeter taxi-ing road
with aircraft servicing bays around the edge of the airfield (PI. 2; Air Ministry 1945). No structures are
marked on that plan. Airfield plans may not record all the structures which were erected and
dismantled to suit varying requirements throughout the life of the airfield, and although it was thought
that this area did not have much by way of buildings there was potential for ancillary buildings such as
Nissen huts and Laing huts (R. Thomas, English Heritage, pers. comm.).

Resident squadrons had been dispersed by September 1945, but the airfield remained in occasional
use by local airfields. There was a proposal in 1948 that the site should be converted to civilian use to
serve Lincoln, but this did not proceed. The airfield was closed in 1952, with use of the airfield being
restricted to storage in hangars. The airfield plan was declassified in January 1958. Although the
runways were shown on an Ordnance Survey 1:2,500 map published in 1972, much of the concrete
from the runways may have been cleared by the late 1960s. The site was returned to farmland and
open land between some surviving taxi-ing roads. With the residential development of much of the
airfield site as the Birchwood Estate from the 1970s, pressures on the peripheral farmland increased
and farming eventually ceased. The development site, along with surrounding ground, was gradually
colonised by vegetation from the adjoining plantations.

The Watching Brief

Monitoring was undertaken by Geoff Tann, on four occasions between October 26th and November
22nd 2004. These visits inspected site clearance, access road groundworks, house foundations, and
a short length of sewer trench (Pls. 3 and 4). Across the site, the 0.25m thick topsoil covered sand
deposits of very mixed appearance. Localised discolouration of the sand may have marked natural
features, such as the backfilled root systems of wind-blown saplings. Clay land drains were seen, and
these were suspected to relate to wartime use of the land, but may have been associated with the
earlier farmining use. As no artefacts or features were seen, the City Archaeologist's office was
contacted and the watching brief was ended.
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Fig.1 Location of Birchwood, Lincoln (inset C based on the Ordnance Survey 1:25,000 Explorer map
272 19. Crown Copyright, reproduced with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. LAS Licence no.

AL 100002165.
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Fig. 2 Location of Kingsdown Road, Lincoln (C based on the 1987 Ordnance Survey 1:10,000
map, Sheet SK 96 NW. Crown Copyright, reproduced with the permission of the Controller of
HMSO. LAS Licence No. AL 100002165).
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Fig. 3 Layout of the new development. Reproduced at reduced scale from drawing by

Stafford Infrastructure Engineering (No. 8285-IE), supplied by the client.
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Fig.4 RAF Skellingthorpe (reproduced from an Air Ministry 1:10,560 plan, 1945).
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Fig. 5 Detail of the airfield close to the present Development Site (extract reproduced froi
Ministry plan 314/45, February 1945).
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Pl. 2 To the south of the development area, concrete areas mark the positions
of wartime aircraft servicing points (looking south).




Pl. 3 Topsoil stripping for the access road revealed no archaeological
features (looking south-east towards the school).

Pl. 4 Very mixed sand deposits were noted across the site and in the
house foundation trenches. The variations were interpreted as
natural in origin.




